

Meeting Minutes

Napa County Board of Supervisors

Joelle Gallagher, District 1 Ryan Gregory, District 2 Anne Cottrell, District 3 Alfredo Pedroza, District 4 Belia Ramos, District 5

* This is a simultaneous meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Napa County, Napa County Public Improvement Corporation, Silverado Community Services District, Monticello Public Cemetery District, In-Home Support Services Public Authority of Napa County, LakeBerryessa Resort Improvement District, Napa Berryessa Resort Improvement District, Napa County Housing Authority, and the Napa County Groundwater Sustainability Agency.

www.countyofnapa.org

Tuesday, March 14, 2023

9:00 AM

Board of Supervisors Chambers 1195 Third Street, Third Floor

*Consolidated

1. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL

Present: Chair Belia Ramos, Supervisors Anne Cottrell, Joelle Gallagher, Ryan Gregory, and Alfredo Pedroza. The meeting was called to order by Chair Belia Ramos.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Director of Human Resources Christine Briceño led the Assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Clerk of the Board requests approval of minutes from the February 28,2023

23-0399

regular meeting.

Motion Text: Approve Minutes.

Voting Yes: Gregory, Cottrell, Gallagher, Pedroza, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Result: Passed

4. PRESENTATIONS AND COMMENDATIONS

A. Director of Human Resources to introduce new County employees.

23-0366

Director of Human Resources Christine Briceno introduced the new County of Napa employees.

5. DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Director of Public Works Steven Lederer presented a report on the Lawley Toll Road and provided an update on the recent storm damage to county roads.

6. CONSENT ITEMS - SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Motion Text: Approve Special Districts Consent Calendar.

Voting Yes: Pedroza, Gregory, Cottrell, Gallagher, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Result: Passed

Napa County Housing Authority

A. Director of Housing & Homeless Services requests approval of aBudget Adjustment to purchase two HVAC systems at the Calistoga Farmworker Center using County Service Area No. 4 available fund balance; and separately accepting a donation for household goods (4/5 vote required):

23-0385

- 1. Decrease Available Fund Balance \$43,200 (Fund 2810, Org 2810000, Obj 33100);
- 2. Increase Transfer Out Appropriation \$43,200 (Fund 2810,Org 2810000, Obj 56100) offset by available fund balance;
- 3. Increase Transfer In Revenue \$43,200 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, Obj 48200);
- 4. Establish two capital assets for a total of \$43,200, which includes the purchase of two HVAC units \$29,600 and \$12,600, and \$1,000 Public Works Construction Contract (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, 55400);
- 5. Increase Maintenance-Building & Improvement Public WorksCharge Appropriation by \$1,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, Obj 52510);
- 6. Increase Donation Revenue \$19,900 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, 5060502, 5060503, Obj 47500); and
- 7. Increase Household Expense Appropriations \$19,900 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, 5060502, 5060503, Obj 53305).

B. Director of Housing & Homeless Services requests approval of Budget Adjustments for increased expense in operating services and supplies, offset by expense savings and Tenant Rent revenue (4/5 voterequired):

23-0412

- 1. Increase Water Treatment Service Appropriation \$2,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, Obj 52383);
- 2. Increase Household Expense Appropriation \$12,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, Obj 53305);
- 3. Increase Utilities Fire Supp Systems Appropriation \$5,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, Obj 53215);
- 4. Increase Utilities Sewer Appropriation \$5,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060501, Obj 53225);
- 5. Decrease Other Professional Services Appropriation \$20,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060503, Obj 52490);
- 6. Increase Utilities Fire Supp Systems Appropriation \$5,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060502, Obj 53215); and
- 7. Increase Rent Tenants Revenue \$9,000 (Fund 5060, Org 5060502, Obj 45310).

7. CONSENT ITEMS

Motion Text: Approve Consent Calendar.

Voting Yes: Pedroza, Gregory, Cottrell, Gallagher, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Result: Passed

Corrections

A. Director of Corrections requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign the renewal of Agreement No. 170747B (DHCS 23-30036 and 23-MCIPNAPA-28) with the California Department of HealthCare Services for a maximum up to \$10,400 per fiscal year for the term July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026 to participate in the Medi-Cal County Inmate Program.

<u>23-0343</u>

Enactment No: A-170747B

County Executive Office

B. Interim County Executive Officer requests adoption of a Resolution proclaiming the termination of the state of local emergency and the local health emergency due to COVID-19.

23-0322

Enactment No: R-2023-35

C. Interim County Executive Officer requests the Board receive a report on lost revenues due to canceling certain criminal justice fines and fees and authorize submittal of the report to the Director of Finance, the Legislative Analyst's Office, and the Joint Legislative Budget Committee.

23-0356

Health and Human Services Agency

D. Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign a certification statement with Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, confirming the County's agreement to comply withall applicable provisions governing the California Children's Services (CCS) program (Agreement No. 230315B).

23-0216

Enactment No: A-230315B

E. Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 220080B with the University of California, Davis (UC Davis), to add a Data Use Agreement to the existing agreement in order to enable County to share data with UC Davis researchers.

23-0217

Enactment No: A-220080B Amend. 1

F. Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign the following agreements for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to provide outreach for and linkage to the Medi-Cal program and services as well as facilitate the Medi-Cal application process:

23-0226

- 1. Agreement No. 230303B with Cope Family Center, Inc., for a maximum of \$50,295;
- 2. Agreement No. 230302B with Spirit of Unity in Napa, Inc.,dba Puertas Abiertas, for a maximum of \$24,857;
- 3. Agreement No. 230308B with Parents Child Advocacy Network for a maximum of \$23,500; and
- 4. Agreement No. 230310B with Up Valley Family Centers of Napa Valley, Inc., for a maximum of \$11,775.

Enactment No: A-230303B; A-230302B; A-230308; A-230310B

G. Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Amendment No. 4 to Agreement No. 160075B with North Valley Behavioral Health, LLC., for a new contract maximum of \$1,000,000 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, and each subsequent automatic renewal, for psychiatric hospitalization services.

23-0227

Enactment No: A-160075B Amend. 4

H. Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Agreement No. 230316B with A&A Health Services, LLC, in the amount of \$250,000 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, and each subsequent renewal, for the provision of residential care for adult mental health clients.

23-0228

Enactment No: A-230316B

I. Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) requests adoption of a Resolution amending the Napa County Bylaws Manual Part II, Section 8 Mental Health Board, effective January 9, 2023, to reflect changes to Article V-Qualifications of Members and Article XV-Policies and Procedures.

23-0310

Enactment No: R-2023-36

Housing & Homeless Services - Division of CEO's Office

J. Director of Housing & Homeless Services requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Agreement No. 230348B with Kristin Lowell, Inc. for a maximum of \$5,800 for the term March 14, 2023 to March 30, 2024 for the annual County Service Area No. 4 (CSA No. 4) Engineer's Report.

23-0320

Enactment No: A-230348B

K. Director of Housing & Homeless Services requests approval of a Budget Adjustment for increased expenses in consulting services, computer equipment and software, and interfund expenditures, offset by mitigation fee revenue (Org 2080000); transfer appropriations originally budgeted from ARPA to buildings and improvement expense (ADU program Org 2080050) to instead be Long Term Loans (Affordable Housing program Org 2080010); and transfer expense appropriations for transfers out to the administrative area of the fund (org 2080000) (4/5 vote required):

23-0432

- 1. Increase Consulting Services Appropriation \$5,000 (Fund 2080, Org 2080000, Obj 52310);
- 2. Increase Computer Equipment/Accessories Appropriation \$2,500 (Fund 2080, Org 2080000, Obj 53410);
- 3. Increase Computer Software/Licensing Appropriation \$2,000(Fund 2080, Org 2080000, Obj 53415);
- 4. Increase Interfund Expenditure Appropriation \$500 (Fund 2080, Org 2080000, Obj 54900);
- 5. Increase Mitigation Fee-Commercial Revenue \$10,000 (Fund 2080, Org 2080000, Obj 46710);
- 6. Increase Long Term Loan Appropriation \$2,000,000 (Fund 2080, Org 2080010, Obj 56500);
- 7. Increase Transfers-In Revenue \$2,000,000 (Fund 2080, Org2080010, Obj 48200);
- 8. Decrease Buildings and Improvements Appropriation \$2,000,000 (Fund 2080, Org 2080050, Obj 55300);
- 9. Decrease Transfers-In Revenue \$2,000,000 (Fund 2080, Org2080050, Obj 48200);
- 10. Increase Intrafund Transfers Out Appropriation \$88,000 (Fund2080, Org 2080000, Obj 57900);
- 11. Increase Transfers-In Revenue \$88,000 (Fund 2080, Org2080000, Obj 48200);
- 12. Decrease Intrafund Transfers Out Appropriation \$88,000(Fund 2080, Org 2080050, Obj 57900); and
- 13. Decrease Transfers-In Revenue \$88,000 (Fund 2080, Org 2080050, Obj 48200).

Human Resources - Division of CEO's Office

L. Director of Human Resources and Director of Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) request adoption of a Resolution amending the Departmental Allocation List for multiple divisions of the Health and Human Services Agency, with a net increase of 1.5 FTE, and no impact to the County General Fund.

<u>23-0428</u>

Enactment No: R-2023-37

M. Director of Human Resources and District Attorney request adoption of a Resolution amending the Table and Index of Classes and the Departmental Allocation List for the District Attorney's Office, by adding one 1.0 full-time equivalent (FTE) DA Media Investigative Technician, effective March 14, 2023, with a net increase of one FTE, and an impact to the County General Fund.

23-0429

Enactment No: R-2023-38

N. Director of Human Resources requests adoption of a Resolution approving an adjustment to the Engineering Manager classification salary to avoid compaction, and deleting the defunct Engineering MGR-PBES classification, effective December 22, 2022.

23-0430

23-0362

Enactment No: R-2023-39

Information Technology Services – Division of CEO's Office

O. Chief Information Officer requests a waiver of competitive bidding requirement and sole source award to AMS.NET (pursuant to Napa County Code Section 2.36.090) for a maximum of \$106,147 for the term of March 14, 2023, through June 30, 2026, for the purchase of the following equipment, labor and licensing for the Countywide wireless internet service project:

- 1. Flood Building:
- a. Meraki Cloud Managed Access Points for \$4,058 forthree-year licensing and three Access Points; including \$1,150 labor for a maximum amount of \$5,208;
- b. Wireless Cabling for \$2,740 labor and \$824 materials for amaximum of \$3,564;
- 2. Juvenile Hall:
- a. Meraki Cloud Managed Access Points for \$31,113 for three-year licensing and twenty-three Access Points; including \$6,550 labor for a maximum of \$37,663;
- b. Wireless Cabling for \$15,720 labor and \$4,933 materials for a maximum of \$20,653;
- 3. Napa Sanitation:
- a. Meraki Cloud Managed Access Points for \$21,494 forthree-year licensing and fifteen Access Points; including \$4,550 labor for a maximum \$26,044; and
- b. Wireless Cabling for \$9,960 labor and \$3,055 materials for a maximum of \$13,015.

Enactment No: A-230338B

P. Chief Information Officer requests the following actions regarding replacement of portable radio equipment (4/5 vote required):

23-0431

- 1. A waiver of competitive bidding requirement and sole source award to Motorola Solutions in the amount of \$315,000; and
- 2. Establishment of a capital asset in the amount of \$315,000 for Motorola portable radios.

Public Works

Q. Director of Public Works requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Amendment No. 2 to Agreement No. 230037B with HCI Services, Inc. to:

23-0207

- 1. Increase compensation for routine fire system services by \$1,000 for a new maximum amount of \$49,220 per fiscal year for the term of the agreement;
- 2. Increase compensation for non-routine services by \$25,000 for a new maximum amount of \$95,000 in fiscal year 2022-23; and increasing compensation for non-routine services by \$5,000 for contract years two through five for a new maximum amount of \$25,000 to address critical maintenance and repairs at various County locations; and
- 3. Amend the scope of work to include routine monitoring, testing, and inspection of the alarm system at Carneros Fire Station 210.

Enactment No: A-230037B Amend. 2

R. Director of Public Works requests the following for the "SouthNapa Shelter Phase II - HVAC Project," PW 20-16A:

23-0270

- 1. Award of the contract for the South Napa Shelter Phase II HVAC Project, PW 20-16A to RBH Construction, Inc. of Folsom, California for their low base bid of \$443,944, with Additive Alternate No. 1 of \$151,558, and Additive Alternate No. 2 for \$52,669, for a total contract cost of \$648,171, and authorization for the Chair to sign the construction contract, Agreement No. 230332B; and
- 2. Approval of Budget Transfer for the following (4/5 vote required):
- a Decrease appropriations in the following Housing and Homeless Services objects, \$326,724 from Other Professional Services (Fund 2030, Org 2030000, Object 52490) and \$350,000 from Client Provider Services (Fund 2030, Org 2030000, Object 52430) to increase appropriation in Transfers-Out by \$676,724 (Fund 2030, Org 2030000, Object 56100) to transfer to Homeless Shelter Improvements Project Budget (Fund 3000, Org 3000550, Project 20030, Object 48200); b. Increase appropriations by \$217,865 from Accumulated Capital Outlay (ACO) (Fund 3000, Org 3000000, Object 57900) budget withthe use of its available fund balance to transfer to Project 20030 (Fund 3000,
- c. Increase appropriations by \$894,589 in Project 20030 (Fund 3000, Org 3000550, Project 20030, Object 52360) budget offset by transfer-in revenues from the Housing and Homeless Services budget and ACO.

Enactment No: A-230332B

Org 3000550, Project 20030, Object 48200); and

- S. Director of Public Works requests the following (4/5 vote required):
 1. Approval of the Plans and Specifications for the "2023 Berryessa Improvements Project" (RDS 22-05, 22-13, 23-05, and 23-16), and the authorization to advertise for sealed bids and opening of the bids at the time, date, and location to be published by the Director of Public Works pursuant to Section 20150.8 of the Public Contract Code;
 - 2. Change Berryessa Pines/Spanish Flat Pavement Project (Fund2040, Org 2040500, Project 23010) name to Berryessa Pines PavingProject;
 - 3. Create new Capital Improvement Project for Spanish Flat Loop Road Paving Project (Fund 2040, Org 2040500, Project 23040); and
 - 4. Approval of Budget Transfer for the following:
 - a. Increase appropriations by \$30,000 in the Accumulated Capital Outlay (ACO) (Fund 3000, Org 3000000, Object 56100) with the use of its available fund balance to transfer to Project 23040 (Fund 2040, Org 2040500, Object 48200); and
 - b. Increase appropriations by \$30,000 in Project 23040 (Fund 2040, Org 2040500, Object 52145) offset by a transfer-in revenue from the ACO.

23-0364

T. Director of Public Works requests approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Agreement No. 230342B with Facilities By Design for the term of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026 with an automatic annual renewal not to exceed two years, and an annual maximum compensation of \$150,000 for professional space planning, design, and furniture coordination services.

23-0387

Enactment No: A-230342B

U. Director of Public Works requests approval of a Budget Adjustment increasing appropriations in the Airport Operations Capital Asset account (Fund 5010, Org 5010000, Object 55400) by \$9,299 with an offsetting decrease to fund balance and establishment of a Capital Asset in the amount of \$9,299 for the purchase of a 2022 EZGO RXV battery powered Utility Cart for the Airport (4/5 vote required).

23-0419

8. DISCUSSION OF ITEMS PULLED FROM CONSENT CALENDARS

None

9. PUBLIC COMMENT

One (1) person spoke during public comment.

10. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - SPECIAL DISTRICTS

None

11. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

Auditor-Controller

A. Auditor-Controller requests acceptance of the County's SingleAudit Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

23-0363

Auditor-Controller Tracy Schulze made presentation.

Discussion held.

Motion Text: Approve the requested actions.

Voting Yes: Cottrell, Gregory, Gallagher, Pedroza, and Ramos

Recusals: None

B. Auditor-Controller requests the Board to accept, and instruct the Clerk of the Board to file, the updated Internal Audit Charter effective March 14, 2023.

23-0390

Accountant-Auditor Manager Paul Phangureh made presentation.

Discussion held.

Motion Text: Approve the requested actions.

Voting Yes: Gregory, Cottrell, Gallagher, Pedroza, and Ramos

Recusals: None
Result: Passed

County Executive Office

C. Interim County Executive Officer and Clerk of the Board request the appointment of two Directors and two Alternates to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA).

23-0365

Clerk of the Board Neha Hoskins made presentation.

Discussion held.

Motion Text: Appoint Alfredo Pedroza as the MTC Director, Ryan

Gregory as the County Director, and Belia Ramos and

Anne Cottrell as Alternates of NVTA.

Voting Yes: Gregory, Gallagher, Cottrell, Pedroza, and Ramos

Recusals: None

D. Interim County Executive Officer requests that the Board:

23-0389

- 1. Receive a presentation of the five-year budget forecast, Section 115 Trust Fund, and American Rescue Plan Act;
- 2. Approve mid-year Budget Adjustments per the attached reports; and
- 3. Authorize the creation of a new non-operating special revenue fund for CARE Court in Fund 2460, Division 24622, Subdivision 20000252 (4/5 vote required).

(CONTINUED FROM FEBRUARY 28, 2023)

Correction Memorandum provided.

Senior Management Analyst Daniel Sanchez made presentation.

Assistant County Executive Officer Rebecca Craig made presentation.

Discussion held.

Motion Text: Approve the requested actions to include the

information as provided in the correction

memorandum.

Voting Yes: Pedroza, Gallagher, Cottrell, Gregory, and Ramos

Recusals: None

E. Interim County Executive Officer requests the following actions:

23-0401

- 1. Consideration and appointment of District 1 Supervisor Joelle Gallagher's nomination of Kara Brunzell to the Napa County Planning Commission with the term of office to commence immediately and run coterminous with the term of Supervisor Joelle Gallagher (December 31, 2026).
- 2. Consideration and appointment of District 3 Supervisor Anne Cottrell's nomination of Heather Phillips to the Napa County Planning Commission with the term of office to commence immediately andrun coterminous with the term of Supervisor Anne Cottrell (December 31, 2026).

Applicants:

Keri Akemi-Hernandez Yvonne Baginski Kara Brunzell Erevan O'Neill Lucio Perez Heather Phillips

Supervisor Joelle Gallagher made presentation.

Motion Text: Appoint Kara Brunzell to the Napa County Planning

Commission.

Voting Yes: Gallagher, Pedroza, Cottrell, Gregory, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Result: Passed

Supervisor Anne Cottrell made presentation.

Motion Text: Appoint Heather Phillips to the Napa County Planning

Commission.

Voting Yes: Cottrell, Gallagher, Gregory, Pedroza, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Planning, Building and Environmental Services (PBES)

F. Interim Director of Planning, Building and Environmental Services requests acceptance of the annual report regarding the status of the Napa County General Plan and progress in its implementation as required by Government Code Section 65400.

23-0316

Correction Memorandum provided.

Planning, Building, and Environmental Services Supervising Planner Trevor Hawkes made presentation.

One (1) person spoke during public comment.

Motion Text: Accept the Annual Report to include the information as

provided in the correction memorandum.

Voting Yes: Pedroza, Cottrell, Gallagher, Gregory, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Result: Passed

Public Works

G. Board to receive a presentation, and possibly provide direction on, the disposition of a segment of Old Howell Mountain Road (OHMR) which was closed due to storm damage in 2017 and was further damaged by the January 2023 storms.

23-0269

Director of Public Works Steve Lederer made presentation.

Discussion held.

Direction provided to staff.

H. Director of Public Works requests the Board of Supervisors:

23-0335

- 1. Receive an update on the planning and design of the 1127 First Street HVAC Replacement Project, PW 21-23; and
- 2. Provide direction whether to move the Project forward given the Facilities Master Planning process initiated on January 31, 2023.

Director of Public Works Steven Lederer made presentation.

Engineering Supervisor Daniel Basore made presentation.

Discussion held.

Direction was provided to staff.

12. SET MATTERS OR PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL DISTRICTS

None

13. SET MATTERS OR PUBLIC HEARINGS

County Executive Office

A. PUBLIC HEARING 9:00 AM

23-0295

Director of Public Works requests adoption of a resolution taking the following actions related to the sale of approximately 2,900 square feet of County-owned property located at 212 Walnut Avenue in the City of Napa (Property) for development of affordable housing:

- 1. Approval of Government Code Section 52201 Summary Reportand finding that the sale of Property will create economic opportunity and result in the development of seven (7) units of for-sale affordable housing and job creation as the result of the anticipated construction of the new development;
- 2. Approval of and authorization for the Chair to sign Purchase and Sale Agreement No. 230350B and Escrow Instructions (Agreement) with Napa Community Development Fund, LP, for transfer of Property for fair market value of \$58,220 for the development of affordable housing;
- 3. Authorization for the Interim County Executive Officer, ordesignee, to execute all ancillary documents, and to take any other actions necessary for the purpose of transferring Property consistent with the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and
- 4. Find and determine that disposition of Property pursuant to the Agreement is exempt from the California Environmental QualityAct (CEQA).

Chair Belia Ramos opened the public hearing.

Deputy Director of Public Works Leigh Sharpe made presentation.

Discussion held.

Chair Belia Ramos closed the public hearing.

Motion Text: Approve requested actions.

Voting Yes: Gallagher, Gregory, Cottrell, Pedroza, and Ramos

Recusals: None

Result: Passed

Enactment No: A-230350B; R-2023-40

B. SET MATTER 9:30 AM - Microbusiness COVID-19 Relief Grant

23-0294

Solano-Napa Small Business Development Center representatives will provide an update regarding administration of the County's Microbusiness COVID-19 Relief Grant program.

Assistant County Executive Officer Rebecca Craig made presentation.

Small Business Development Center Solano-Napa Director Tim Murrill made presentation.

Small Business Development Center Solano-Napa Lead Advisor Mike Basayne made presentation.

Discussion held.

14. LEGISLATIVE ITEMS

Supervisors Ryan Gregory and Anne Cottrell reported on attending the annual National Association of Counties (NACo) Legislative Conference held in Washington, DC from February 11 - 14, 2023. Some of Supervisor Gregory's highlights were meetings with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) policy makers, Senator Alex Padilla, and Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Chairperson Jessica Rosenworcel. In addition to the FEMA meeting, some of Supervisor Cottrell's highlights were seeing the presence of the California State Association of Counties (CSAC) and the Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) at the conference, and meeting with Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

15. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Supervisor Alfredo Pedroza reported on the following:

Attending the Napa County Farm Bureau Ag Day on March 9, 2023;

Attending the Napa Valley Vintners Wildfire Summit, also on March 9, 2023, that was also attended by Chair Belia Ramos; and

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) will be receiving \$3 million from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the SR 29 - American Canyon Improvement Project and he complimented NVTA Executive Director Kate Miller on her efforts.

Supervisor Joelle Gallagher reported on attending the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) meeting of March 1, 2023 where some topics of discussion were federal rebates and tax credits coming in 2024 for low-income residents to do retrofits, as well as the State's Equitable Building Decarbonization Program that will provide \$835 billion to eligible home owners and tenants for retrofits. At tomorrow's meeting, the BAAQMD will discuss rule changes that will affect future building in terms of gas furnaces and water heaters.

Supervisor Ryan Gregory reported on attending the CSAC meeting of March 2, 2023 where a main topic of discussion was their At Home initiative, which is a plan to address homelessness that has arisen from Governor Gavin Newsom's challenge to reduce homelessness using funds the State has provided. The plan will be further discussed at the next CSAC meeting on April 13, 2023, during the CSAC Legislative Conference, which will be a joint meeting with the League of California Cities.

Supervisor Anne Cottrell reported on attending an RCRC meeting on March 8, 2023 wherein a small group of counties with active Williamson Act contracts discussed meeting with the director of the State Department of Conservation to advocate for the State's continued support of the Williamson Act, of which Napa County is a good example of the success of the program.

Chair Belia Ramos reported in addition to the MTC and Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) overlap, she attended a City of American Canyon State of the City luncheon on March 7, 2023 wherein the report had one full page highlighting Napa County and specifically mentioned the Soscol Junction and jail replacement projects, and Supervisors Cottrell and Gallagher where introduced at the event.

16. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Supervisor Alfredo Pedroza requested a discussion of working with the Small Business Development Center on developing some type of program incentives.

17. COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Interim County Executive Officer David Morrison reported the County Executive Office has hired a new Legislative Analyst, Andrew Mize, who will start employment on April 3, 2023 and comes from the Tennessee Attorney General's office.

18. CLOSED SESSION

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTINGLITIGATION (Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1))

23-0398

Name of case: In re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation

Case No.: U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Case No.

1:17-md-2804

Closed Session held. County Counsel Sheryl Bratton reported the following: By a 5-0 vote, the Board authorized the Interim CEO David Morrison to execute participation forms to opt into settlements with five drug manufacturers and retail pharmacies (CVS, Walgreens, Walmart, Teva, Allergan). These entities are among the defendants in consolidated nationwide opioid litigation, in which Napa County is a plaintiff. According to the allocation formula, Napa County stands to receive .352% of the litigating subdivision fund and .288% of the abatement fund, for a total of \$4,579,200 over the life of the agreements.

19. ADJOURNMENT

ADJOURN TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REGULAR MEETING, TUESDAY, MARCH 28, 2023 AT 9:00 A.M. IN MEMORY OF GINNY SIMMS, THE FIRST FEMALE ELECTED TO THE NAPA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.

Neha Hoskins (By e-signature)

NEHA HOSKINS, Clerk of the Board